
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum 
 

Tuesday 7 March 2023 6.00 pm  
(Live stream of the decision making meeting to start at 7.00pm) 

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 
 

Membership 
 

  
 

Councillor Naima Ali (Chair) 
Councillor Ketzia Harper (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Suzanne Abachor 
Councillor John Batteson 
Councillor Ellie Cumbo 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE 
Councillor Natasha Ennin 
Councillor Sam Foster 
 

Councillor Alice Macdonald 
Councillor Kimberly McIntosh 
Councillor Darren Merrill 
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor Martin Seaton 
Councillor Kieron Williams 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 

 

 

INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 
 

 
Access to information 

You have the right to request to inspect copies of minutes and reports on this agenda as 
well as the background documents used in the preparation of these reports. 

Babysitting/Carers allowances 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look after your children, 
an elderly dependant or a dependant with disabilities so that you could attend this 
meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  Please collect a claim form at 
the meeting. 

Access 

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  Further details on building 
access, translation, provision of signers etc for this meeting are on the council’s web 
site: www.southwark.gov.uk or please contact the person below. 

Contact: Gerald Gohler on 020 7525 7420 or email: gerald.gohler@southwark.gov.uk  
   
 

Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Althea Loderick 
Chief Executive 
Date: 27 February 2023 
 

 
 

Open Agenda

http://www.southwark.gov.uk/Public/Home.aspx
mailto:gerald.gohler@southwark.gov.uk


 
 

West Central multi-ward forum 
 

Tuesday 7 March 2023 6.00 pm  
(Live stream of the decision making meeting to start at 7.00pm) 

Ground Floor Meeting Room G02 - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 
 
 

Order of Business 
 

 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 
 

 

2. SOUTHWARK 2030 WORKSHOPS 
 

 

 From 6.00pm to 6.45pm.  
 

 

 BREAK 
 

 

 The decision making part of the meeting and livestream will start at 
7.00pm. 
 

 

3. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

4. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 

 

 

 The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 

 

5. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 Members to declare any personal interests and dispensations in 
respect of any item of business to be considered at this meeting. 
 

 

6. MINUTES 
 

1 - 9 

 To agree as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 1 
March 2022. 
 

 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Page No. 
 
 

7. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS (IF ANY) 
 

 

 The chair to advise on any deputations or petitions received at this 
meeting. These must relate to a subject matter on this agenda only. 
 

 

8. CLEANER GREENER SAFER 2023-24: CAPITAL FUNDING 
 

10 - 19 

 Note: This is an executive function for decision by the multi-ward 
forum. 
  
To approve a reallocation and the allocation of funds for the Cleaner 
Greener Safer capital programme. 
 

 

9. NEIGHBOURHOODS FUND (NSF) 2023-24 
 

20 - 50 

 Note: This is an executive function for decision by the multi-ward 
forum. 
  
To approve the allocation of funds for the 2023-24 Neighbourhoods 
Fund in the West Central multi-ward area from the list of 
applications outlined in Appendix 1 of the report. 
 

 

10. DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS BUDGET 2023-24: CAPITAL FUNDING 
 

51 - 60 

 Note: This is an executive function for decision by the multi-ward 
forum. 
  
To approve a reallocation and the allocation of funds for the 
Devolved Highways Programme. 
 
 
 

 

Date:  27 February 2023 
 

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if 
the sub-committee wishes to exclude the press and public to deal 
with reports revealing exempt information: 
 
  “That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1-7, 
Access to Information Procedure rules of the Constitution.” 

 

 

 
 



1 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum - Tuesday 1 March 2022 
 

 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum 
 

MINUTES of the West Central multi-ward forum held on Tuesday 1 March 2022 
at 6.30 pm at Ground Floor Meeting Room G01 - 160 Tooley Street, London 
SE1 2QH  
 

 

PRESENT: Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE (Chair) 
Councillor Jack Buck 
Councillor James Coldwell 
Councillor Alice Macdonald 
Councillor Martin Seaton 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 
 

OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

George Mellish, Transport Projects Engineer 
Grace Semakula, Empowering Communities Programme 
Officer 
Carmen Mulcahy, Highway Engineering Apprentice 
Wingyan Ngan, Empowering Communities Support Officer 
Gerald Gohler, Constitutional Officer  
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 The chair welcomed members, officers and members of the public to the meeting.  
 

2. APOLOGIES  
 

 There were apologies for absence from Councillors Eleanor Kerslake (Vice-Chair), 
Radha Burgess, Tom Flynn, Lorraine Lauder MBE, Rebecca Lury, Darren Merrill, 
Jason Ochere and Kieron Williams.  
 

3. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS 
URGENT  

 

 The chair informed the meeting that supplemental agenda No.1 had been 

1
Agenda Item 6



2 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum - Tuesday 1 March 2022 
 

circulated with sets of minutes for the 2020 and 2021 meetings to be agreed.  
 

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 There were none.  
 

5. MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meetings held on 4 March 2020 and 8 March 2021 be 
agreed.  

 

6. DEPUTATIONS / PETITIONS (IF ANY)  
 

 There were none.  
 

7. CLEANER GREENER SAFER 2022-23: CAPITAL FUNDING ALLOCATION 
(WEST CENTRAL)  

 

 Note: This is an executive function for decision by the multi-ward forum. 
 
The chair announced that there was £87,700 in additional funding from previous 
years underspend, current programme underspend and current programme project 
cancellations. Furthermore, there were £447,619 available for the 2022-23 CGS 
capital programme for new projects in the West Central Multi-ward area.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
1. That the reallocation of underspent funds of £87,700 carried forward from 

previous years underspend, current programme underspend and current 
programme project cancellations be agreed.  
 

2. That the following allocation of funds for the 2022-2023 Cleaner Greener 
Safer capital programme in the West Central multi-ward area be agreed:   
 
    Camberwell Green ward  
 

Ref Name Award 

1732457 Elmington Woods on Elmington Estate £18,375 

1734914 Protecting the planet at Laird House £12,250 

1735275 High Rise Greener Gardens £4,300 

2



3 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum - Tuesday 1 March 2022 
 

1739006 Draycott Close Pedestrian Safety £9,200 

1741042 
Benhill Road Nature Garden Entrances 
Project £12,250 

1741050 Benhill Road Nature Garden Clean-Up £3,675 

1741152 
Rebuild & Maintain the PACT 
Community Allotment £5,625 

1741585 Myers/Carlyle House Bike lockers £12,250 

1741600 Boundary Hs bike locker project £12,250 

1741686 Access BET! £24,450 

1741714 Blucher Road Green Corridor £6,750 

 
 

   Faraday ward  
 

Ref Name Award 

1730030 St Peter's Plant Screening £3,675 

1734933 Faraday Hanging Baskets £14,300 

1740360 Edible Playground Surrey Square 
School 

£2,600 

1740968 Kinglake Estate planters £6,125 
(subject to 
feasibility 

issues 
being 

ironed out)  
  

1741527 Kinglake Green Spaces £10,000 

1741579 Keston Entrance £2,000 

1741655 Walworth Society, St Peter's Churchyard £24,500 

1741658 OK Grow Community Garden  £3,375 

 Church Commission Allotment Fence £12,000 

 Faraday ward cycle hangars £18,948 

 
 
 
 
 

3



4 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum - Tuesday 1 March 2022 
 

    Newington ward 
   

Ref Name Award 

1732325 Brandon Raised Bed Planter 
Refurbishment 

£10,000 

1737013 Frederick Road improvements 
to rear parking area SE17 (mainly 
council-owned shared space) 

£13,400 

1738653 Crampton St Planters £2,123 

1740274 Fantastic Forsyth Gardens £20,000 

1740410 Greener and Remember NETRA £6,000 
(funding 

for bench 
and tree 

only) 

1741079 Clean NETRA £30,000 

1741702 Alberta Glade Garden and Wetland, 
Walworth 

£10,000 

 
 
             North Walworth ward 
 

Ref Name Award 

1739423 Browning Settlement Garden £5,500 

1739565 Salisbury Row Park Playground £20,000 
(Parks 

departmen
t to match 

fund) 

1741801 Elba Place Equipment £3,200 

1741666 Congreve Community Garden £7,000 

500062 East Street Flytipping £7,350 

 
  St Giles ward 
 

Ref Name Award 

1740588 

Notice Boards for Council Residents of 
Vicarage Grove/ Brunswick Park/Benhill 
Road/Elmington Road (Streets) £6,125 

1741472 Notice board replacement scheme £2,450 

1741504 Alcove sensor lights £1,850 

4



5 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum - Tuesday 1 March 2022 
 

1741518 
72 Grove Lane estate, additional wild 
areas £2,450 

1741535 72 Grove Lane estate gates £11,475 

1741538 Hedges for Homes £9,248 

1741541 72 Grove Lane bike storage £6,125 

1741546 Bicycle lockers £6,125 

1741681 D'eynsford estate garden and grounds £850 

1741739 Gilesmead Entrance Slow-Close Gate £5,500 

1741748 Cleaner Gilesmead 2 £6,125 

1743887 
Southampton Way Community Garden 
Consolidation Plan £13,500 

1745997 Save the Elephant £12,075 

1748331 
Extension to bike and scooter storage 
area at Lyndhurst Primary School. £5,625 

 
 
 

8. ALLOCATION OF NEIGHBOURHOODS FUND FOR 2022-23  
 

 Note: This is an executive function for decision by the multi-ward forum. 
 
The chair announced that there were £150,000 of the Neighbourhood Fund to 
allocate.  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

That the total of £150,000 of the Neighbourhoods Fund 2022-23 be 
allocated as follows:   
 
Camberwell Green ward  
 

Ref Name of Group Name of Project  Allocation 

843 PACT, Parents and 
Communities 
Together 

Teaching Families to Grow 
at the PACT Allotment 

£4,814 

946 Panjshir Aid Together for Afghan 
Refugees 

£5,000 

975 Walworth Golden 
Oldies  

Golden Memories £2,500 

1031 Southwark 
Explorers' Club 

Southwark Explorers' Club £1,950 

1033 Cambridge House The Incredibles' Summer 
SENsation Parade  

£3,721 

1060 Camberwell After 
School Project 

Celebration of the Queens 
Platinum Jubilee  

£5,000 

5



6 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum - Tuesday 1 March 2022 
 

1155 Grosvenor TRA Platinum Jubilee Street 
Party 

£1,015 

1156 Camberwell Arts 2022 Camberwell Arts 
Festival 

£3,500 

1177 SE5 Forum Camberwell Saturdays  £2,500 

 
 

Faraday ward  
 

Ref Name of Group Name of Project  Allocation 

961 Southwark Rugby Girls Rugby Team £2,900 

979 Edible Rotherhithe Keep on Growing - The 
Young Growers at Surrey 
Square School 

£2,100 

1067 Burgess Sports Multi-sports holiday 
programme for vulnerable 
children 

£4,500 

1068 Burgess Sports Food programme for 
children attending Multi-
Sports 

£4,500 

1105 From That To This Skills for Life £5,000 

1151 Walworth 
Community Garden 
Network 

WCGN Community Garden 
Recovery  

£2,580 

1158 Holistic Well 
Women 

Urban Voices Community 
Research Project 

£4,000 

877 Inspire At St Peters Inspire To Grow £4,000 

 
 

Newington ward  
 

Ref Name of Group Name of Project  Allocation 

912 Kennington Park 
TRA 

Kennington Green Growers  £550 

920 LADPP LADPP COVID-19 Support 
and financial welfare 
support Services  

£4,000 

970 Walworth Garden Walworth Garden: Growing 
Together  

£4,450 

974 Friends of Pasley 
Park 

Newington Community Fete £4,500 

985 Brandon1 TRA Website Development £500 

1034 Pembroke House Walworth Community Pub £4,000 

1085 Spring Community 
Hub  
[formerly Central 
Southwark 

Holiday Club £2,500 

6



7 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum - Tuesday 1 March 2022 
 

Community Hub] 

1120 Link Age Southwark Yoga £5,000 

1130 Spring Community 
Hub 

Back2Work £2,500 

1152 Walworth 
Community Garden 
Network 

WCGN Community Garden 
Recovery  

£2,000 

 
 

North Walworth ward 
 

Ref Name of Group Name of Project  Allocation 

1005 South London 
Cares 

Regular Social Clubs in 
Walworth for Older and 
Younger Neighbours 

£4,017 

1150 Walworth 
Community Garden 
Network 

WCGN Community Garden 
Recovery  

£3,230 

960 Draper Together 
CIO 

The Spring Project £972 

 
 

St Giles ward  
 

Ref Name of Group Name of Project  Allocation 

839 23rd Camberwell 
Scout Group 

Summer Expedition - 
France 2022 

£5,000 

954 D`Eynesford Estate Basketball and Schoolwork 
Club 

£2,000 

967 Sceaux Gardens 
Growers Group 

Community Garden 
Maintenance Grant 

£1,500 

1029 South London 
Gallery 

Sunday Spot £3,000 

1049 Camberwell Choir 
School 

Camberwell Songs for All 
Seasons 

£3,000 

1064 Step Out Mentoring Step Out Mentoring £2,000 

1079 Flashy Wings 
Ministry 

Project Lavender 
Recreational Therapy 

£2,500 

1083 D` Eynsford TMO D`Eynsford Community 
Gardening Sessions 

£1,000 

1104 Catherine Ida 
Dohou 

Project Lily of the Valley £2,000 

1118 Link Age Southwark Gentle Exercise £3,000 

1142 The Bower Brunswick Park Film 
Festival 2022  

£5,000 

 
 

7



8 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum - Tuesday 1 March 2022 
 

9. DEVOLVED HIGHWAYS 2022-23: CAPITAL FUNDING ALLOCATION (WEST 
CENTRAL)  

 

 Note: This is an executive function for decision by the multi-ward forum. 
 
The chair announced that there was £113,270 in additional funding from previous 
years underspend, current programme underspend and current programme project 
cancellations. In addition to this, there was £190,475 available for the 2022-2023 
Devolved Highways programme for new projects in the West Central multi-ward 
area.   
 
RESOLVED:  
 
1. That the reallocation of underspent funds of £113,270 carried forward from 

previous years underspend, current programme underspend and current 
programme project cancellations be agreed.  

 
2. That the following allocation of funds for the 2022-2023 Devolved Highways 

budget in the West central multi-ward area be agreed:   
 

Camberwell Green ward    

   Reference Title Amount 

1742696 Trees for Wyndham & Comber £8,575 

  
EV Charge Points (Knatchbull Road, Baldwin 
Crescent & County Grove) 

£10,500 

 
 

Faraday ward  
 

Reference Title Amount 

1738435   Cycling on Surrey Square £5,000 

 
 

Newington ward  
 

Reference Title Amount 

1740866 Olney Road Cycle Hangar   £5,000 

1747228 Doddington Grove Cycle Hangar   £5,000 

  Newington EVCP's £28,095 

 

 
 

North Walworth ward   

 
  Reference Title Amount 

1747330 Partial closure of Orb Street £10,000 

8



9 
 
 

West Central multi-ward forum - Tuesday 1 March 2022 
 

 
  

St Giles ward 

 
  Reference Title Amount 

1740562 
Additional funds for CGS 108461 - Planters and 
Bees for Vicarage Grove, SE5 

£10,000 

1741803 Greening Coleman Road £8,400 

  St Giles Cycle Hangars £41,775 

 
  

 

 The meeting ended at 7.03 pm.  
 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

 

9



 

 

 
 

1 

 

Item No.  
8. 

 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
7 March 2023 
 

Decision Taker: 
West Central Multi-Ward 
Forum  

Report title: 
 

Cleaner Greener Safer 2023-24: Capital 
Funding Allocation (West Central) 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

Camberwell Green, Faraday, Newington, North 
Walworth, St Giles 

From: 
 

Head of Highways  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the reallocation of underspent funds carried forward from previous 

years’ underspend (£92,503), current programme underspend and 
current programme project cancellations be approved.  

 
2. That the allocation of funds for the 2023-24 Cleaner Greener Safer 

capital programme in the West Central Multi-Ward Area be approved 
from the list of applications set out in Appendix 1. 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
3. The council’s Cleaner Greener Safer capital programme has been 

running since 2003. 
   
4. £1.88 million has been allocated every year since 2003 for capital 

projects within the borough.  
 

5. Funding is allocated to individual wards based on a per councillor 
calculation. 

 
6. Examples of the types of projects that have been funded include: 
 

 Parks, community gardens, landscaping, tree planting and wildlife 
areas 

 Children’s playgrounds, youth facilities, ball courts and cycle tracks 

 Lighting, security measures, pavements, streets, and tackling ‘grot 
spots’ 

 Grants to local groups to self-deliver projects. 
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
7. There is £319,500 available for the 2023-24 CGS capital programme for 

new projects in the West Central Multi-Ward area. 
 

10
Agenda Item 8



 

 

 
 

2 

8. There is £92,503 in additional funding from previous years’ underspend, 
current programme underspend and current programme project 
cancellations.  

 
9. Eligible proposals must bring about a permanent improvement and 

make an area cleaner, greener or safer.  
 
10. Proposals with revenue costs, including salaries, costs for events, 

festivals, workshops or other one-off events are not eligible for capital 
funding. CCTV proposals and internal improvements to housing property 
and works on schools where there is no access to the general public are 
also not eligible. Works on private property are not eligible unless there 
is a long-term guarantee of public access or a demonstrable public 
benefit.  

 
11. The application form invited expressions of interest for the applicants to 

deliver projects themselves. A due diligence exercise to ensure that this 
is both practical and realistic has been undertaken as part of the 
feasibility process. In such cases, the council would give the funding 
allocation to the applicant in the form of a capital grant, with appropriate 
conditions attached. 

 
Policy framework implications 
 
12. The Cleaner Greener Safer programme is fully aligned with the council’s 

policies around sustainability, regeneration and community engagement. 
 

13. The Cleaner Greener Safer programme fully supports and aligns with the 
council’s Streets for People strategy which outlines the council’s ongoing 
commitment to, and ambition for, healthier neighbourhoods, cleaner air, 
thriving town centres and safer roads. 

 
Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts 
 
Community impact statement 

 
14. The roles and functions of multi-ward areas include the promotion of 

involvement of local people in the democratic process and to take 
decisions about local matters. 

  
15. The multi-ward forums have delegated authority in the following key 

areas: The Neighborhoods Fund, Cleaner Greener Safer and Devolved 
Highways capital programmes and community project banks. 

 
16. An explicit objective within multi-ward areas is that they be used to 

actively engage as widely as possible with, and bring together, 
Southwark’s diverse local communities on issues of shared or mutual 
interest. The Cleaner Greener Safer programme is an important tool in 
achieving community participation. 

 

11



 

 

 
 

3 

Equalities (including socio-economic) impact statement 
 
17. In fulfilling the above objectives of multi-ward areas to bring together 

and involve Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has 
also been given to the council’s duty under The Equality Act 2010 which 
requires the council to have due regard when taking decision to the 
need to: 
 
a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 

conduct; 
b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a 

relevant protected characteristics and those who do not share it; 
c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant 

characteristic and those that do not share it. 
 
18. Of particular regard are issues of age, disability, gender reassignment, 

pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation. 
 
19. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity is 

further defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need of: 
 

a. Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant 
protected characteristic; 

b. Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic; 

c. Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
participate in public life or any other activity in which they are under- 
represented. 

 
20. When undertaking the duties under section 149 the council must ensure: 

 
a. The duty must be fulfilled before the decision in question is enacted: 
b. The duty must be exercised in substance with ‘rigour and an open 

mind’; it is not a matter of ticking boxes and: 
c. The duty is continuing; it does not end with the completion of any EIA 

and due regard must be had as policy evolves and is implemented 
 

21. Ideas for CGS projects come from the local community, the majority via 
a simple project nomination form available in electronic and paper 
format. 

 
Health impact statement 

 
22. The following health benefits are possible or expected based on the 

types of projects normally funded via the Cleaner Greener Safer 
Programme. 

 
23. An Increase in community assets in the public realm – providing more 

places for people to spend time in their local community. This has the 
potential to have a positive impact on social and mental wellbeing, by 

12



 

 

 
 

4 

creating connected and cohesive communities.   
 
24. Increased ownership over community public realm – this helps people 

within the community join together around a project, supporting 
connected and cohesive communities 

 
25. Project examples such as parks, community gardens, landscaping, tree 

planting and wildlife areas may have the following impacts: 
 

a. Improve mental wellbeing by increasing access to the outdoors and 
nature 

b. Improved access to affordable healthy food, supporting people to be 
more food insecure  

c. Tree planting and green spaces may help to reduce or disperse air 
pollution, supporting people’s physical health 
  

26. Projects such as children’s playgrounds, youth facilities, ball courts and 
cycle tracks, encourage physical activity that has a huge number of 
health benefits including supporting people to achieve a healthy weight. 

 
27. Projects such as lighting, security measures, pavements, streets, and 

tackling ‘grot spots’ support community safety.  
 
Climate change implications 
 
28. The allocation of funds in the West Central multi-ward area towards the 

2023-24 CGS capital programme actively supports the council’s 
ambition to become carbon neutral by 2030.  
 

29. It is also a decision aligned with the programme of work set out within 
the Climate Strategy and Action Plan, namely through priorities One, 
Two, Three and Five – Greener Buildings, Active and Sustainable 
Travel, Thriving Natural Environment and Renewable Energy.  

 
30. By reallocating these funds, the council is continuing to invest in 

community led projects that reduce carbon and promote biodiversity. For 
example, the development of community gardens, wildlife areas and 
additional tree-planting all aid in the protection of local flora, fauna and 
wildlife. 

 
31. Additionally, lighting upgrades taken through this scheme will look to 

improve energy efficiency and the development of cycle tracks through 
this scheme help residents transition towards active travel.   
 

32. With all CGS spending decisions, potential carbon impact will be taken 
into account as part of the allocation process and where possible, 
officers should attempt to monitor and evaluate potential carbon 
emissions from individual schemes. 

 
 

13



 

 

 
 

5 

Resource implications 
 
33. There are no additional staffing implications as provision will be made from 

the Highways Division to deliver the recommendations included in this 
report.  

 
Financial implications 
 
34. The funding for the CGS capital programme from 2011 to 2021 was 

approved by the cabinet and is part of the council's overall capital 
programme as detailed in the Capital Programme 2011–2021 report 
dated 21 June 2011. 

 
35. The allocation of funding per ward for the CGS capital programme was 

approved by the cabinet member for transport, environment and 
recycling as detailed in Allocation of funds to wards via Cleaner Greener 
Safer and Devolved Highways programmes report dated 20 December 
2018. 

 
36. The funding for the 2023-24 CGS capital programme was approved by 

the cabinet member for environment, transport management and air 
quality as detailed in Launch of Cleaner Greener Safer Capital 
Programme 2015-16 report dated 6 August 2014.  

 
37. All professional fees related to the project are also treated as the capital 

costs of the project. Where projects are awarded as a grant to 
organisations, the award amount announced at multi-ward forums 
includes professional fees. The multi-ward forums award notification to 
grant recipients details the grant amount only, excluding these fees. 

 
38. CGS projects must be completed within two years of award of funding.  

Projects that are unlikely to be completed within two years will be 
reported to the multi-ward forum and available budgets may be 
reallocated to other projects. Revenue costs not covered by 
maintenance or the contractual liability period will fall upon the asset 
owner. The department will be notified of the likely costs before the 
schemes proceeds, in order to secure permission to implement the 
scheme. 

 
39. After the defects and liability period, or three year maintenance period in 

the case of planting works, all future maintenance is assumed by the 
asset owner, for example Housing, Parks, Highways, or in some cases 
external asset owners. Therefore, there are no revenue implications to 
the Highways division as a result of approving the proposed allocation.  

 
40. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be 

monitored and reported on as part of the overall Capital Programme. 
 

41. Value for money will be ensured when the contract is procured by 
following the council’s contract standing orders. 

14



 

 

 
 

6 

 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Assistant Chief Executive – Governance and Assurance   

 
42. Part 3H of the council’s constitution provides that multi-ward forums can 

‘approve the allocation of neighbourhood funds, cleaner, greener, safer 
and devolved highway capital schemes of a local nature using the 
resources and criteria identified by the cabinet’. The recommendations in 
this report are therefore appropriate for determination by the West Central 
Multi-Ward forum. 

 
43. The council has a duty, pursuant to Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, 

to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to eliminate 
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations 
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it. Protected characteristics include age, 
disability, pregnancy and maternity. It is noted at paragraphs 15-19 of this 
report that officers have considered the Public Sector Equality Duty and 
have concluded that at this time the proposals will have no detrimental 
impacts on a particular protected group under the Equality Act. 

 
44. The Human Rights Act 1998 imposes a duty on the Council as a public 

authority to apply the European Convention on Human Rights; as a result 
the council must not act in a way which is incompatible with these rights.  
The most important rights for planning and highways purposes are Article 
8 (respect for homes); Article 6 (natural justice) and Article 1 of the First 
Protocol (peaceful enjoyment of property). The implementation of these 
proposals which are the subject of this report are not anticipated to breach 
the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998. 

 
45. Council Assembly on 14 July 2021 approved a change to the council’s 

constitution to confirm that all decisions made by the council will consider 
the climate and equality (including socio-economic disadvantage and 
health inequality) consequences of taking that decision. This has been 
considered in the report at paragraphs 12-31 above. 

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Governance  
 
46. This report seeks the approval of the West Central Multi-Ward Forum for 

the allocation of funds (£319,500 + £92,503 reallocated) for the 2023-24 
Cleaner Greener Safer (CGS) programme in the West Central Multi-Ward 
Area from the list of applications set out in Appendix 1.   

 
47. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource 

implications in the report and that the proposed allocations will be 
contained within the CGS element of the council’s capital programme. 

 
48. It is also noted that officers’ time and any other costs connected with this 

15



 

 

 
 

7 

recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue 
budgets. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 

 

Cabinet Report: Capital 
Programme 2011–2021 – 21 June 
2011 
 

Neighbourhoods and 
Growth / Highways 
160 Tooley Street  

Craig Dove 
020 7525 0955 

Link (please copy and paste into your browser): 
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s20485/Cabinet%20Report%20
-%2021%20June%202011.pdf 
 

Appendix F: General Fund Capital 
Programme 2011-21 – 21 June 
2011 
 

Neighbourhoods and 
Growth / Highways 
160 Tooley Street 

Craig Dove 
020 7525 0955 

Link (please copy and paste into your browser): 
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s20521/Appendix%20F%20Ge
neral%20Fund%20Capital%20Programme%202011-
21%2021062011%20Cabinet.pdf 
 

Launch of Cleaner Greener Safer 
Capital Programme 2015/16 - 
August 2014  
 

Neighbourhoods and 
Growth / Highways 
160 Tooley Street 

Craig Dove 
020 7525 0955 

Link: 
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798 

IDM report – 20 December 2018 
Cabinet Member for Environment, 
Transport Management and Air 
Quality 
 

Neighbourhoods and 
Growth / Highways 
160 Tooley Street 

Craig Dove 
020 7525 0955 

Link: 
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50018979&
Opt=0 
 

Cabinet Meeting Minutes 17 
September 2019 
 
 

Neighbourhoods and 
Growth / Highways 
160 Tooley Street 

Craig Dove 
020 7525 0955 

Link (please copy and paste into your browser): 
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/g6415/Agenda%20frontsheet%2
0Tuesday%2017-Sep-2019%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=0 
 

16

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s20485/Cabinet%20Report%20-%2021%20June%202011.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s20485/Cabinet%20Report%20-%2021%20June%202011.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s20521/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Programme%202011-21%2021062011%20Cabinet.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s20521/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Programme%202011-21%2021062011%20Cabinet.pdf
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/s20521/Appendix%20F%20General%20Fund%20Capital%20Programme%202011-21%2021062011%20Cabinet.pdf
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=4798
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50018979&Opt=0
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50018979&Opt=0
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/g6415/Agenda%20frontsheet%20Tuesday%2017-Sep-2019%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=0
http://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/documents/g6415/Agenda%20frontsheet%20Tuesday%2017-Sep-2019%2016.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=0


 

 

 
 

8 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 

Appendix 1 All West Central Multi-Ward CGS Applications 2023-24 

 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Dale Foden, Head of Highways  

Report Author Craig Dove, Senior Project Manager 

Version Final 

Dated 21 February 2023 

Key Decision? Yes 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /  
CABINET MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included 

Assistant Chief Executive – 
Governance and Assurance   

Yes Yes 

Strategic Director of 
Finance and Governance   

Yes Yes 

Climate Change Director Yes Yes 

Public Health Team Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member  No No 

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 21 February 2023 

 

17



West Central
Cleaner Greener Safer 2023 - 24 Applications

ReferenceProposal Name
1891226 Bicycle storage/ racks/ bin
1892196 Install Extra BIKEAWAY upright locker to STUDLAND Portland Street. SE17 2TW.
1896620 erection of permanent bollards outside Roffo Court SE17
1897738 East Street Pocket Park
1898166 Marchwood Raised Flower Bed
1898773 CASP Playground Safety Improvements and gardening project
1898955 Elmington Road Food Growing & Communal Garden improvement
1899167 Kevan House Relax and Reflection Garden
1899245 Uplifted by Art
1899550 Benhill Road Nature Garden - New Compost Bays
1899557 Benhill Road Nature Garden children's pond dipping platform
1899563 Benhill Road Nature Garden  dry bed plants and wildflowers
1899912 Brandon Raised Bed Planter Refurbishment V2
1900314 Garden improvements @ Surrey Square School
1900331 bike hangar on boundary lane
1900404 Playground resurfacing for community park
1900475 Raised Beds Repairs
1900658 Dighton Ct Community Garden
1900834 Hughes House Garden Maintenance and Improvements
1901013 Safe Path
1901084 Peckham Grove cycle parking
1901087 Greener, cleaner cars
1901088 Ensuring the safety of Dog Run at Pasley Park
1901103 Boundary Hs derelict sheds
1901117 Walworth junction
1901182 Pick up your poo
1901185 Repairs to fencing between  James Stroud and Harry Hinkins  Houses.
1901330 Cleaner, safer passageway
1901335 Walworth and Wooler Street welcomes nature
1901539 Repairing and making safe the benches in our TRAs  community green space
1901615 72 Grove Lane bin cupboard drains
1901628 Coleby cycle storage
1901681 new interpretation board for St Mary's Churchyard, Newington
1901688 72 Grove Lane water butts/catchers
1901733 Goschen Community Gardens and Food Project
1901756 Red Lion Row Safety Project
1901762 Safer Naylor house
1902167 Dighton Court Community Garden
1902250 Carter Street Planter
1902265 Fleming Lorrimore Kissing Gate
1902420 Staggered Railing
1902480 Secure bicycle storage on McDowall Road
1902528 Replace planters with railings
1902567 Improvement to acoustics at SLGs Art Block on Sceaux Gardens estate.
1902612 duplicate do not use
1902626 New Shed in the Community Garden (Secrete Garden)
1902647 Brunswick Park  garden of reflection
1902659 New Bike Hangers

APPENDIX 1 
18



1902752 Accessible toilet for Brunswick Park
1902957 Traffic calming and landscaping efforts on Stead, Wadding and Content Streets
1903426 A wayfinding strategy for Elephant and Castle opportunity area
1903435 Love Thy Neighbour
1903722 McDowall Road traffic calming
1903487 Lorrimore Square Safer Surfacing for Play
1903688 Fareshares Improvement Works
1903860 Burgess Park Woodlands
1903861 St Peters Church  Full restoration of the East Loggia

1903862
Newington Hub between Walworth Garden, Pasley Park and Manor Place Terrace: 
Masterplan  engagement and visualization

1903950 Netra Play
1903951 Congreve Community Garden Re-design
1903953 Safe cycle parking
1903962 Clean NETRA - Phase 2
1903987 Lettsom Wildflower Meadow
1904101 Greener Wyndham road
1904084 Southampton way community garden extension phase 3
1904018 Better Bins for Dowlas
1904021 Landscaping Doddington Grove Garden
1904027 Pitch Perfect
1904093 Plants for podium area outside Jessie Duffet Hall
1904038 Create a designated dog zone, Doddington Grove Estate SE17

1904058
Landscaping and greening to all Doddington Grove Estate green spaces including 
raised beds and estate perimeter.

1904071 Outdoor Gym Doddington Grove Estate
1904080 Dawes House - Rodney Road Estate
1904086 Podium Lights Outside Jessie Duffett Hall
1904088 Community Garden Group
1904091 Jessie Duffett Hall Garden Area
1904097 Cleaner bin and electricity cupboard area
1904100 Recycling bins and wooden bin housing/stores, Doddington Grove Estate.
1902612 Alvey Estate Community Facilities Improvements
1904103 Albert Westcott Communal Gardens

1904108
Permanent new play area and equipment for the Key Stage 1 playground at St 
Georges C of E Primary School, supported by St Georges PTA.

1904110 Berryfield's Green Street
1904118 Lucas Gardens Play Space Regeneration
1904145 Tisdall Place Community Garden
1904153 Daniels paradise garden
1904159 Forsyth Gardens lighting
1904169 Fielding  Trash bins  and shed doors
1904179 Council  external shed doors
1904191 Safety Gates for 25 - 55 Crawford Road
1904193 Jessie Duffet Hall sign and notice board and 2 notice boards for Wyndham Estate.
1904200 Boundary House Communal Garden
1904202 Removal of disused pram sheds 35-58 Boundary Hs SE5 0YB
500118 Drinking fountain
1904102 Dawes House Play Area

19



1 
 

Item No.  
9. 

Classification: 
Open 

Date:  
7 March 2023 

Meeting Name:  
West Central Area Multi-Ward 
Forum Meeting 

Report title: Allocation of Neighbourhoods Fund for 2023-24 
 

Ward(s) or groups 

affected: 

Camberwell Green, Faraday, Newington, North 
Walworth, St Giles 

From: Director of Communities 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. That the West Central Multi-Ward Forum allocates a total of £150,000 of the 

Neighbourhoods Fund 2023-24 to the list of applications outlined in Appendix 1, 
subject to this funding being approved in the 2023-24 budget and all relevant 
applicants complying with the council’s grant funding requirements 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2. The Neighbourhoods Fund (NsF) was introduced in 2015 by merging two former 

revenue programmes known as Cleaner, Greener, Safer revenue (CGS) and 
Community Council Fund (CCF). The cabinet member for communities, 
employment and business authorised the amalgamation of the CGS revenue 
fund and community council fund, into a single funding programme to create a 
new Neighbourhoods Fund for the 2015-16 round and onwards. This decision 
was taken on 12 December 2014. 

 
3. The NsF has a borough-wide funding budget of £630,000 with an allocation of 

£10,000 per councillor, for each ward. This is subject to the annual budget setting 
process. 

 
4. The purpose of introducing the NsF was to give local areas decision making 

powers over significant amounts of revenue funding, that they could allocate to 
meet locally determined priorities.  

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
5. Each ward will have £10,000 per councillor of revenue grants to allocate and it is 

proposed that any unallocated funds from the previous rounds (years) are to be 
carried forward and added to the financial year commencing 1 April 2023. 

 
6. The multi-ward forums will use the criteria set out below for the allocation of this 

funding: 
 

a. Creating opportunities for people from different backgrounds to get on well 
together; (e.g. community cohesion)  

 

20
Agenda Item 9



2 
 

b. Establishing projects which treat each other with respect and consideration 
(e.g. being a good neighbour, inter-generational contacts)  

 
c. Encouraging residents to be responsible for their own neighbourhood (e.g. 

community clean-ups; volunteering initiatives) 
 

d. Specific measures to enhance a neighbourhood’s environment (e.g. 
increased cleaning). 

 
7. A multi-ward forum may choose to allocate some of their NsF resources to their 

CGS capital allocations. 
 

8. Subject to the availability of resources, the NsF may be used to ‘buy’ services 
from the council. 

 
9. As with any executive decision taken by multi-ward forums, this is subject to the 

council’s existing scrutiny arrangements. 
 
Policy framework implications 
 
10. The NsF has a borough-wide funding budget of £630,000 with an allocation of 

£10,000 per councillor. This is subject to the annual budget setting process. The 
fund can allow individuals and community groups to organise their own events / 
projects to enable communities to come together. 

 
Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts 
 
Community impact statement 

 
11. The roles and functions of multi-ward forums include the promotion of 

involvement of local people in the democratic process. Multi-ward forums take 
decisions on local matters including environmental improvements and 
community safety as well as consultation on a wide range of policies and 
strategies that affect the area.  

 
12. An explicit objective within the Empowering Communities Programme (ward and 

multi-ward meetings) is that they be used to actively engage as widely as 
possible with, and bring together, Southwark’s diverse local communities on 
issues of shared mutual interest.  

 
13. The allocation of the 2023-24 NsF West Central Multi-Ward forum budget will in 

the main, affect the people living in the West Central Area. However, in making 
the area a better place to live and improving life chances for local people, the 
West Central Multi-Ward area, NsF activities will have an impact on the whole of 
Southwark. 

 
14. The NsF is an important tool in achieving community participation and cohesion. 

Having a strong, vibrant and engaged community is a key part of creating a fairer 
and just society through enabling volunteering, participation, inclusion and well-
being at a borough wide and neighbourhood level. 

21



3 
 

 
Equalities (including socio-economic) impact statement 
 
15. In fulfilling the above objectives that multi-ward forums have of bringing together 

and involving Southwark’s diverse local communities, consideration has also 
been given to the council’s duty under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 which 
requires the council to have due regard when taking decisions to the need to: 

 
a. Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation or other prohibited 

conduct 
 

b. Advance of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic and those who do not share it  
 

c. Foster good relations between those who share a relevant characteristic 
and those that do not share it. 

 
The protected characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage 
and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, and 
sexual orientation.  

 
16. Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between those 

who share a relevant characteristic and those who do not share it is further 
defined in s.149 as having due regard to the need to: 

 

 Remove or minimise disadvantages connected with a relevant protected 
characteristic. 
 

 Take steps to meet the different needs of persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic. 
 

 Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to 
participate in public life or any other activity in which they are under- 
represented. 

 
Due consideration was given to equalities impact during the design of this awards 
process and no adverse impact was evident. 

 
17. When undertaking the duties under section 149 the council must ensure: 

 

 The duty must be fulfilled before the decision in question is enacted; 
 

 The duty must be exercised in substance with ‘rigour and an open mind’; it 
is not a matter of ‘ticking boxes’; and 
 

 The duty is continuing; it does not end with the completion of any equality 
impact assessment and due regard must be had as policy evolves and is 
implemented. 

 
18. Due consideration was given to this duty during the process of identifying 

22



4 
 

recipients of the NsF grants and no adverse impact on any group with a protected 
characteristic was evident. The open application process enables residents with 
protected characteristics to facilitate events that are relevant to them, and 
equality monitoring is required which will assist the council in continuous 
compliance with the public sector equality duty.  

 
Health impact statement 

 
19. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has disadvantaged many communities in 

the borough and highlighted health inequalities. 
 

20. Improving access to council funding will enable organisations to better support 
the health and wellbeing of their communities. It will also increase their ability to 
support their communities and address key issues within their localities. 

 
Climate change implications 
 
21. There are projects listed in the Appendix that may have positive climate change 

implications in the West Central Area if they are successful.  
 
Resource implications 
 
22.  There are no resource implications. 
 
Legal implications  
 
23. All approved applicants will need to comply with all relevant council grant 

approval requirements.  
 
Financial implications  

 
24. The West Central multi-ward NsF has been allocated a total of £150,000 for 

2023-24. 
 

25. It is recommended that multi-ward forums set aside some unallocated funds from 
previous years in order to prevent an over allocation of funds, as well as to act 
as a contingency from which urgent or incidental requests can be funded 
throughout the year.  

 
Consultation 
 
26. The NsF projects may require consultation with stakeholders, including the 

project applicant, local residents and tenants and residents associations where 
applicable. 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Assistant Chief Executive – Governance and Assurance 
 
27. The Local Government Act 2000 (“the 2000 Act”) gives the Leader the power to 

23



5 
 

delegate any executive function to area committees. The allocation of the 
neighbourhoods fund is an executive function. 

 
28. Multi-ward forums are ‘area committees’ within the meaning of the 2000 Act. 

 
29. The delegation can be found in Part 3H of the constitution, which enables multi-

ward forums to approve “the allocation of neighbourhood funds, using the 
resources and criteria identified by the cabinet”. This is therefore a decision that 
the Multi-Ward Forum is empowered to take. 

 
30. The Localism Act 2011 gives councils a general power of competence whereby 

they have power to do anything that individuals generally may do. This power 
can be used even if legislation already exists that allows a local authority to do 
the same thing. However the general power of competence does not enable a 
local authority to do anything which it was restricted or prevented from doing 
under the previous legislation.  

 
31. The general power of competence includes the power to: 
 

a) incur expenditure 
b) give financial assistance to any person 
c) enter into arrangements or agreements with any person 
d) co-operate with or facilitate or co-ordinate the activities of any 

person 
e) exercise on behalf of any person any functions of that person; 

and 
f) provide staff, goods, services or accommodation to any person. 

 
32. The provision of funding under the NsF falls within the scope of the kind of 

activities the council can undertake under the general power of competence as 
this includes the power to give financial assistance to any person. 

 
33. In allocating funding under the NsF multi-ward forums must have regard to the 

council’s equality duties set out in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. The 
report author has demonstrated how those duties have been considered in the 
body of the report. 

 
34. This report is recommending that the multi-ward forum approve the allocation of 

monies from the NsF 2023-24 as specified at Appendix 1.  
 

Strategic Director of Finance and Governance  
 
35. The 2023-24 budget allocation for the neighbourhoods fund will be agreed by 

council assembly as part of the budget setting process. The report notes the 
allocation is £10,000 per councillor by ward and thus £150,000 should be 
awarded to the West Central Multi-Ward.  
 

36. Paragraph 25 notes the need to maintain a contingency element from the funding 
available for urgent or incidental requests. This is a prudent measure to assist in 
the effective running of the Neighbourhoods Fund. 

24



6 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 

Allocation of Neighbourhoods 
Fund 2023-24 

Environment & Leisure 
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2QH 

Grace Semakula, 
Empowering 
Communities 
Programme Officer 
 
020 7525 4928 
 

Link: 
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/engagement-and-consultations/empowering-
communities/neighbourhoods-fund-2022 
 

 

 
 

APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 

Appendix 1  West Central Multi-Ward NsF Applications 2023-24 

AUDIT TRAIL  
 

Lead Officer  Forid Ahmed, Empowering Communities Manager 

Report Author  Grace Semakula, Empowering Communities Programme 
Officer  

Version  Final 

Dated 7 February 2023 

Key Decision  Yes 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 
MEMBER  

Officer Title  Comments 
Sought 

Comments included  

Assistant Chief Executive – 
Governance and Assurance 

Yes Yes 

Strategic Director of Finance and 
Governance  

Yes  Yes 

Strategic Director, 
Environment, Neighbourhoods and 
Growth 

No No 

Cabinet member  No No 

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 16 February 2023 

25

https://www.southwark.gov.uk/engagement-and-consultations/empowering-communities/neighbourhoods-fund-2022
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/engagement-and-consultations/empowering-communities/neighbourhoods-fund-2022


7 
 

APPENDIX 1 

West Central Neighbourhoods Fund 2023-24 Applications 

 
Camberwell Green 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

1839 Growing 
Together 

Growing 
Together - 
Warner Road 

Our main aims of the Growing Together 
at Warner Road will focus on: 
Encourage young people on the estate 
and surrounding areas to engage with 
their green spaces. Create more green 
spaces on the estate. Improve 
residents’ confidence in food growing 
and gardening. Start a gardening group 

8,150 

1958 Grosvenor 
Estate TRA 

Grosvenor 
Estate Annual 
Street Party 

To maintain and build social cohesion of 
different ages and cultural backgrounds 
in a very diverse estate. The annual 
street party is always a great success 
and helps build the great community we 
have.  

1,410 

1961 Blue Elephant 
Theatre  

Young 
People's 
Theatre 

YPT is youth-led, allowing the young 
people total creative freedom within the 
structure of the project. Blue Elephant 
Theatre's Youth Panel meets every 3 
months to inform that structure and 
shape the opportunities available to 
other young people.  

5,000 

1986 Walworth Golden 
Oldies 

Golden 
Adventurers 

Our programme aims to counter 
loneliness and isolation amongst 
members of Southwark's elderly 
community, particularly amongst elderly 
members of the BAME community - but 
not exclusively so. 

5,500 

2038 SE5 Forum for 
Camberwell  

Feel Good 
Festival 

Our pilot Feel Good Festival on 
Camberwell Green over 6 Saturdays in 
June and July 2022 attracted 934 visits 
by local residents to improve their 
physical and mental health and to 
signpost people to services. It brought 
together Camberwell's statutory 
services (Partnership Southwark, 
Maudsley CAMHS), NGOs (MIND), 20 
local health and wellbeing practitioners 
and Lyndhurst primary school choir, 
Healthy Living Platform food banks and 
pantries. 

5,368.53 

2039 Crawford Tenant 
& Resident 
Association  

Crawford 
Tenant & 
Resident 
Association  

The project will improve the mental state 
and wellbeing of our resident in the 
estate who has being enjoying such 
parties and trips. The project will also 
reduce loneliness among resident and it 
will act as a form of socialization among 
residents. Improving health and 
wellbeing of the resident in the estate is 
the top priority of the project.  

9,300 

26



8 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

2093 The Welcome 
Singers 

The Welcome 
Singers 

The Welcome Singers was established 
in 2006 for retired people to sing 
together. No musical experience or 
auditions are required. We have an 
inspirational conductor and under her 
guidance we sing an amazing range of 
music - from folk songs to madrigals, 
show time favourites to African 
chorales. We are a diverse group. Long 
lasting friendships have been made.  

3,805 

2146 Hidaya Women's 
Association 

Women's 
English 
Classes 

The project is in place to encourage 
women to learn English. It is needed 
because we have found there are a lot 
of women with children in the local 
community who because of their lack of 
English skills cannot communicate with 
the school and teachers about their 
child's education.  

4,100 

2156 Millwall 
CommunityTrust 

Kicks @ 
Bethwin 
Adventure 
Playground 

Our Kicks programme aims to inspire 
vulnerable and at-risk children and 
young people to achieve their potential 
and improve their wellbeing;  

5,000 

2160 SouthEastSkates Winter Roller 
skate Venue 

The project is trying to achieve a safe 
all-inclusive family and safe warm 
affordable indoor roller skating and 
disco environment for our increasing 
roller-skating community.  

3,100 

2174 Southwark 
Explorers' Club 

Southwark 
Explorers' Club 

Our aim is to enhance the health, 
wellbeing and lifelong learning of older 
people by organising weekly visits by 
Southwark Seniors to a wide variety of 
places of cultural, historic and artistic 
interest.  

2,250 

2201 Spring 
Community Hub 

Holiday club Spring Community Hub's objective is to 
support those who are experiencing 
financial challenges, causing Food 
Insecurity, and Activities such as 
providing Food Parcels.  

3,975 

2202 Adult IT skills 
training  

Adult IT skills 
training  

Most ladies who attend the Somali 
community centre in Camberwell are IT 
illiterate. This creates a digital divide in 
the community, a division and inequality 
in access to information and resources. 
The digital divide is unequal access to 
digital technology and the internet. 
Thus, digital access and IT skills are 
essential to enabling the community to 
participate fully in our increasingly 
digital society. Levelling up this 
community, addressing and tackling the 
digital divide is crucial. 

5,000 

27



9 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

2219 Ignite Hubs Camberwell 
Coding Club 

We teach weekly coding classes to 
children and young people aged 7 to 18 
years olds at Peckham Library. Due to 
request from Southwark Council Library 
Service, we are looking to deliver 
classes at Camberwell Library.  
Our classes are taught by IT 
professionals and entail a rich 
curriculum of front-end web 
technologies; HTML/CSS, a general-
purpose programming language called 
Python and Scratch, a graphical 
programming language, which is 
particularly suitable for those new to 
coding. These skills are needed by 
companies like YouTube, Google, 
Netflix and Instagram. 
From our research, youth 
unemployment in Southwark is above 
the national average and by equipping 
young people with in-demand coding 
skills they will be able to access 
employment opportunities and higher 
paying roles that will enable those from 
disadvantaged backgrounds to change 
their circumstances. 

4,996 

2253 Camberwell Arts 2023 
Camberwell 
Arts Festival 

The Festival aims to promote local 
community cohesion by bringing people 
together to collectively celebrate 
Camberwell's diverse cultural offer and 
their shared neighbourhood.  

3,750 

2260 Southwark 
Pensioners's 
Centre 

Magic 
Christmas 
2023 

SPC wants to bring older people 
together to enjoy 4 magical Christmas 
afternoons together of fun, joy, 
connection.  

3,550 

2287 Camberwell 
Society 

Black History 
Walk - 
Location 
Panels 

The project is designed to fit with and 
extend the current CIL funded Black 
History Walk project (budget £5k) that 
Southwark are developing through the 
officer Susan du Toit. The first phase 
(from £5k approved CIL budget) is to 
install an information panel on the green 
showing the walk, to source narrations 
by young black voices and create a 
website linked to the Southwark Council 
site. 

5,500 

 

  

28



10 
 

 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 
£ 

2070 Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc 
London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc 
London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey Community Kitchen is a 
grassroots local non for profit 
community organisation. Our project 
has operated out of Bermondsey for the 
last several years providing a variety of 
services for our local community. 
However our support reaches across 
Southwark and because of this we are 
changing our name to the London 
Community Kitchen, so more people are 
aware of our services and are not 
excluded.  
 
This year we are expanding this project 
across the whole of Southwark. The 
local food banks are overwhelmed with 
their growing clients. Our project offers 
something different to the traditional 
food bank, providing healthy nutritious 
homemade ready to eat meals.  

4,500 
[applied to 

5 wards] 

2009 Living Bankside Black Futures Providing Opportunities for young 
people from ethnic minorities - in 
particular those of African descent and 
a holistic mentoring programme with 
successful black and other ethnic 
minority individuals. 

13,000 
[applied to 

all 5 
wards] 

 

  

29



11 
 

West Central Neighbourhoods Fund 2023-24 Applications 

 
Faraday 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

1777 Burgess Sports Multi-sports 
holiday 
programme 

We offer a unique opportunity  
for children to access high-
quality sports, and leadership 
activities in a friendly supportive 
environment. For girls and boys 
from 5 years, our programme is 
run from Monday to Friday from 
9:30am to 3 pm. Children will do 
a variety of sports. 

4,800 

1826 Edible 
Rotherhithe 
C.I.O. 

Keep on 
Growing at 
Surrey Square 
School 

Keep on Growing will provide 
children at Surrey Square School 
with free weekly food growing, 
gardening and arts and crafts 
clubs & workshops each school 
term. Children will learn how to 
grow and harvest food, the 
importance of healthy eating and 
where food comes from; explore 
and develop their natural 
environment and biodiversity, 
children's health, well-being and 
connection with the natural 
environment.  

6,820 

1837 Inspire at St 
Peters 

Inspire to Grow This group has been operating 
for a number of years now by 
providing regular weekly outdoor 
gardening sessions for 
vulnerable and disabled adults to 
provide positive outdoor group 
gardening and vegetable 
growing activities in a friendly 
and supportive environment: 

4,000 

1868 Art in the Park Saturdays at Art 
in the Park  

This project is based on ideas 
from our younger and older 
regular participants. This project 
aims to run a series of similar 
Saturday art workshops and 
visits starting in April and running 
over 3 months. 
The additional opportunity of 
stimulating trips to museums and 
galleries that enable people to 
learn new things.  

4,996 

1881 SE17Working 
CIC 

Ekabo Action 
Team 

The Ekabo project will work 
primarily with Southwark's 
BAME Community to develop an 
'Ekabo Action Team', a pool of 
50 trained volunteers that will 
develop activities and events to 
meet with each other and 
'welcome' local familiar faces 

7,506 

30



12 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

again, and will include Ekabo 
Breakfast Mornings, Ekabo 
Newsletter, and fun family 
games/activities to combat 
isolation and promote healthy 
lifestyles. 

2003 Burgess Sports Healthy meals 
holiday camp 

Food insecurity in our area has 
worsened since COVID. Many 
children and families need our 
support and especially during the 
holiday periods schools are 
closed and unable to provide a 
hot meal to children in need. 
Burgess Sports for many years 
running the multi-sports 
programme has been also 
delivering a food programme to 
provide children a nutritious 
healthy meal so necessary and 
important for their development 
and life 

4,800 

2130 Uffo Athletic 
and Leisure 
Group Ltd 

Uffo Athletic 
Health & 
Wellbeing Walks 

We hope to reach up to 25 
women over the grant period. 
Our project is different from other 
projects because it is led by local 
people who speak additional 
community languages and 
recognise cultural barriers to 
physical activities. Our walks will 
be delivered during term time 
and over 30 weeks, considering 
school holidays, Ramadan, and 
other religious celebrations in the 
local communities. We will 
connect and learn from other 
similar groups. We also offer 
athletic and football sessions for 
children and running events for 
local men. 

3,233.45 

2187 Walworth 
Neighbourhood 
Food Model 

Walworth 
Neighbourhood 
Food Tour 
(Faraday) 

Walworth Neighbourhood Food 
Tour is a free walking tour to 
engage local residents in 
celebrating the trust and 
solidarity upon which local, 
community-based food initiatives 
in our neighbourhood are built. 
We identified the need to make 
these food projects and 
enterprises more accessible and 
visible to local residents. Our 
goal is to create a fun, interactive 
and informative experience for 
residents to learn about the local 
food system, and encourage 
them to engage with local food 
projects. 

6,350 

31



13 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

2221 Burgess Park 
Cricket 
Academy 
Sports and 
Social 
Association 

Sport Active 
Community 
Cricket 
Southwark 
(SACCS) 

SACCS will deliver 2 cricket 
teams, a programme of sporting 
coaching and sport other 
development activities for 
community groups in Southwark, 
particularly disadvantaged and 
disaffected youth and young 
people, male and female. The 
programme will access to 
County Cricket Academy, 
coaching session in the part, 
local schools, mentoring.  

11,652 

2245 Get Rid of and 
Donate CIC 

Bringing our 
Communities 
Together 
Supporting 
People in Need 

Get Rid of and Donate aims to 
increase all efforts, improve 
domestic recycling divert and 
support people in need in 
communities, prevent poverty 
and reduce environmental 
impacts. The project's aims and 
efforts are to redistribute pre-
loved home goods to people and 
families in need, especially 
migrants, refugees and asylum 
seekers in Southwark through 
various community centre's co-
working and partnering with 
other community services 
foodbanks, mental health 
services, well-being services, 
parent support and youth 
services.  

1,000 

2248 Fitness Justice 
Limited 

Community 
Fitness Justice 

Our aim is to serve Southwark 
residents by providing high 
quality, accessible and 
responsive exercise services 
focussing on improving physical 
& mental health in order to 
improve the wellbeing and 
healthy life expectancy of our 
local population. We will 
collaboratively work to develop 
tailored exercise programmes, 
healthy eating advice & deliver 
exercise & health activities to 
support local residents of all 
ages particularly those from 
disadvantaged backgrounds and 
underrepresented groups. The 
main goal is to improve physical 
& mental health, quality of life 
and overall wellbeing. 

4,947 

32



14 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

2297 Platform 
Cricket (Tower 
Hamlets Youth 
Sports 
Foundation) 

Walworth 
Whirlwinds 
Cricket Club 

We will create a "Pop Up" Youth 
Cricket Club in Walworth that will 
address the current inequalities 
in access to cricket, whilst 
supporting personal and social 
development. 
The hub will be open to any child 
aged 7-11 living in the area, but 
will be grown from a schools 
coaching programme (NOT 
funded through this grant) that 
will involve: 
- Crampton,- English Martyrs, 
Keyworth, - -Michael Faraday- 
Robert Browning, - St John 
Walworth - St Paul's.- St Peter's- 
Surrey Square 
- Townsend,Victory. 
- Children from introductory 
activities delivered at each 
school will be encouraged 
/supported to migrate to 
evening/weekend activity which 
features physical literacy, 
fitness, strength & conditioning, 
team-building, problem- solving, 
nutritional workshops and social 
events, alongside the cricket 
content. 

 

6,349 

2329 From THAT To 
THIS 

Skills For Life We aim to help and focus on 
working with different cultures 
that creates a bonding 
experience, fostering a positive 
activity between young and the 
elderly. The project will focus on 
learning new skills and 
maximising potential with a view 
to improving mental health and 
well- being, the achievements 
they make in the sewing classes 
will help to improve self- esteem 
and confidence. The sewing 
class members will gain new 
skills, a fun activity, and a sense 
of achievement. 
 
 
 
 
 

5,200 

33



15 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

2330 Friends of 
Burgess Park 

Burgess Park 
woodlands 

The aim is to utilise the Burgess 
Park woodlands to support 
health and wellbeing. We will be 
piloting woodlands engagement 
activity including woodland skills 
with six sessions practical skills 
sessions which includes 
education and wellbeing. We 
would like to build on this pilot 
activity with a focus on wellbeing 
with more targeted outreach 
working with local health and 
mental health projects. With the 
Neighbourhood Fund we would 
also like to pilot "forest bathing" 
which is successfully delivered at 
Crystal Palace Park.  

5,000 

2070 Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc 
London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc 
London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey Community Kitchen 
is a grassroots local non for profit 
community organisation. Our 
project has operated out of 
Bermondsey for the last several 
years providing a variety of 
services for our local community. 
However our support reaches 
across Southwark and because 
of this we are changing our name 
to the London Community 
Kitchen, so more people are 
aware of our services and are not 
excluded.  
This year we are expanding this 
project across the whole of 
Southwark. The local food banks 
are overwhelmed with their 
growing clients. Our project 
offers something different to the 
traditional food bank, providing 
healthy nutritious homemade 
ready to eat meals.  

4,500 
[applied to 

5 wards] 

2009 Living 
Bankside 

Black Futures Providing Opportunities for 
young people from ethnic 
minorities - in particular those of 
African descent and a holistic 
mentoring programme with 
successful black and other 
ethnic minority individuals. 

13,000 
[applied to 

all 5 
wards] 

 

  

34



16 
 

   

West Central Neighbourhoods Fund 2023/24 Applications 

 
Newington 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

1808 BREAKTHEBARRIER 
CIC 

Summer 
Session/Workshop 

The project is about 
breaking down barriers 
by having activities, 
workshops and trips 
during the holidays for 
families in our 
community by providing 
this sessions free of 
charge especially during 
this period of 
uncertainty, as we have 
been able to previously 
and we will like to 
continue to have 
positive impacts. 

5,460 

1876 Walworth Community 
Pub Project 

Walworth 
Community Pub - 
building 
democratic 
involvement  

We are local residents 
wanting to play a greater 
role in building a thriving 
community in Walworth. 
We think pubs can play 
a vital role at the heart of 
our community.  
 

5,000 

1967 Friends of Pasley 
Park  

One Newington 
Community Fete 

Community based fete 
for Newington sharing 
the rich history of the 
Royal Surrey Zoological 
Gardens as a creative 
stimulus. History, 
creativity, theatre, art, 
community engagement 
to animate the park. 
Newington Community 
Fete will be held on Sat 
9 Sep 2023. 
 
Promotes the park as 
the key green lung in 
Newington for local 
residents and promotes 
the work of the friends of 
Pasley Park.  

5,000 

 

  

35



17 
 

 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

2105 Link Age 
Southwark 

Seated Yoga We are seeking funding to support 
the continued delivery of our 
seated yoga group at King Charles 
Court. We have been running an 
exercise group in this residentials 
setting for a number of years. The 
group was adapted during the 
period of restrictions to incorporate 
telephone calls to group members 
from the group tutor. With the lifting 
of restrictions it has is now back up 
and running as in 'in-person' offer. 
The group tutor is a specialist in 
the work that she does and adapts 
the group to accommodate the 
needs of individual group 
members. As well as the physical 
benefits that group members 
derive from the group, the group 
incorporates an opportunity for 
emotional wellbeing both through 
the physical exercise but also from 
the opportunity to interact with 
other group members including the 
tutor and volunteers who attend. 
The group is open to residents of 
King Charles Court as well as 
residents of nearby Hughes House 
and other service users who live 
locally.  

3,170 

2122 Excel Peer Training / 
Personal 
development  

Excels Objective and Aim is to 
Empower Choice - Empowering 
our clients to make informed 
choices Designed to build and 
boost self-confidence and self-
awareness in participants  
Bring clarity and depth to the 
participant's choices, actions and 
goal-setting 

5,180 

2127 Spring 
Community 
Hub  

Back 2 Work  The focus of the project is to work 
with individuals to provide support 
and advice in Welfare Benefits, 
Housing, Employment, Business 
Start-up, development and access 
to other learning, and training 
provision  

7,794 

 

  

36



18 
 

 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

2152 Millwall 
Community 
Trust 

Kicks @ 
Brandon Youth 
Centre 

Our Kicks programme aims to 
inspire vulnerable and at-risk 
children and young people to 
achieve their potential and improve 
their wellbeing; working together 
with the community and partners to 
build a stronger, safer and more 
inclusive community in Newington. 

5,000 

2182 Walworth 
Neighbourhood 
Food Model 

Walworth 
Neighbourhood 
Food Tour 

Walworth Neighbourhood Food 
Tour is a free walking tour to 
engage local residents in 
celebrating the trust and solidarity 
upon which local, community-
based food initiatives in our 
neighbourhood are built.  
 
 

6,350 

2194 Spring 
Community 
Hub 

Holiday club Spring Community Hub's objective 
is to support those who are 
experiencing financial challenges, 
causing Food Insecurity, and 
Activities such as providing Food 
Parcels. The Holiday Activity Club 
and other relevant services help 
them to maximise the income they 
have.  

3,975 

2262 RMUK 
Wellbeing  

Food and 
Wellbeing 

To break isolation and loneliness, 
and sustain cohesion and dignity. 
Encouraging elder residents to 
stay physically and socially active.  

11,482 

2272 Doddington 
Grove 
Residents 
Association 

Performing 
Arts 
Workshops for 
Young People 
& Doddington 
Grove 
Gardening 
Club 

Performing Arts Workshops 
These workshops will provide the 
young people with: 
- inspiration, fun and excitement 
- collaboration through 
participation in creative group 
activities 
- a platform to express themselves 
in a creative way 
- social and communication skills 
- confidence and self-worth 

5,000 

 

  

37



19 
 

 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

2275 LATIN 
AMERICAN 
DISABLED 
PEOPLE'S 
PROJEC  

LADPP Cost of 
living financial 
welfare support 
Services 

The Spanish and Portuguese-
speaking community living in 
London, where the majority are 
based in Southwark and 
surrounding boroughs, has been 
significantly impacted by the 
increased cost of living. Last year 
we made around 450 Universal 
Credit applications, of which 330 
were to support families and 120 
for single applicants. Our 
evaluation of services shows that 
people are struggling to meet 
essential needs such as heating 
and food. 

5,000 

2070 Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc 
London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc 
London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey Community Kitchen 
is a grassroots local non for profit 
community organisation. Our 
project has operated out of 
Bermondsey for the last several 
years providing a variety of 
services for our local community. 
However our support reaches 
across Southwark and because of 
this we are changing our name to 
the London Community Kitchen, 
so more people are aware of our 
services and are not excluded.  
This year we are expanding this 
project across the whole of 
Southwark. The local food banks 
are overwhelmed with their 
growing clients. Our project offers 
something different to the 
traditional food bank, providing 
healthy nutritious homemade 
ready to eat meals.  

4,500 
[applied to 

5 wards] 

1920 Coding Club Coding club Currently, there are no other 
coding clubs in Newington Ward. I 
communicated with the lady in 
charge of Brandan 3 TRA in 
Newington Ward. We both agreed 
to offer a 12- week 
coding club to young people aged 
between 10 to 16 years old who 
are residents at Brandan estate 
and other estates within the Multi 
Ward. A coding club would engage 
the young people with a positive 
alternative, thus helping reduce 
anti-social behaviour, generate 
employment, and make positive 
development. 

5,000 

38



20 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 
[£] 

2009 Living 
Bankside 

Black Futures Providing Opportunities for young 
people from ethnic minorities - in 
particular those of African descent 
and a holistic mentoring 
programme with successful black 
and other ethnic minority 
individuals. 

13,000 
[applied to 

all 5 
wards] 

 

  

39



21 
 

West Central Neighbourhoods Fund 2023-24 Applications 

 
North Walworth 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

1735 Afro-Brazilian Arts 
& Cultural 
Exchange Institute 

Fighting 
Inequality 
Project 

Our organisation would like to 
apply for a grant to run an 
educational programme in 
Southwark to improve the 
quality of life of young people 
that come from disadvantaged 
backgrounds and otherwise 
would not be able to afford the 
extracurricular activities that 
we offer.  

4,500 

1803 Neo Music LTD Course Code: 
+44NEOMB- 
Music 
Business 
workshop for 
beginners, 
Opening doors 
for future 
female music 
execs  

We plan to educate and give 
female minorities in the area a 
chance to get their foot in the 
music industry doors within a 
safe space run by women of a 
minority background. We will 
bring the ladies together to put 
on a festival which will give 
them notable experience and 
also give them a chance to 
understand the various roles 
that are available to them in the 
music industry. Not only will it 
gives these kids something to 
do but it will also boost their 
confidence in engaging with 
others in the real world while 
giving them access to what it 
really takes to become a music 
exec in the music industry 

5,150 

1972 The Fungi Club The Fungi Club The Fungi Club engages folks 
in Southwark interested in 
learning about fungi and 
mushroom cultivation through 
events, workshops, growing 
projects and our online 
community.  

 

1,130.98 

2181 Spring Community 
Hub 

Domestic 
Abuse 
Awareness for 
Survivors 

Spring Up Women's Group will 
be a 6-month programme for 
women in Southwark affected 
by poverty and disadvantage, 
and who are at high risk of 
domestic abuse.  

 

6,400 

2186 Walworth 
Neighbourhood 
Food Model 

Walworth 
Neighbourhood 
Food Tour 

Walworth Neighbourhood 
Food Tour is a free walking tour 
to engage local residents in 
celebrating the trust and 

6,350 

40



22 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

(North 
Walworth) 

solidarity upon which local, 
community-based food 
initiatives in our neighbourhood 
are built. 

2214 Walworth Coding 
Club 

Walworth 
Coding Club 

We teach weekly coding 
classes to children and young 
people aged 7 to 18 years olds 
at Peckham Library. Due to 
request from Southwark 
Council Library Service, we are 
looking to deliver classes at 
Walworth Library.  
This project will provide the 
necessary cash resources to 
pay for Code Instructors and 
Learning & Education Assistant 
to help organise, develop and 
deliver the coding sessions. 
They will be supported by 
volunteers. 

4,996 

2311 Elephant and 
Castle Business 
Forum 

Community 
Wellbeing 
Workshops 

A series of free workshops 
facilitated by local 
organisations for anyone to 
attend. The workshops will be 
held weekly over a two month 
period starting April 2023. The 
project aims to engage with 
members of the community, in 
particularly young people who 
have little to do. The idea 
originated from a discussion of 
the Elephant & Castle 
Business Forum, where 
businesses raised concerns 
about antisocial behaviour from 
young people loitering in public 
spaces within the town centre. 
The sessions will include 
sports and gym-related 
activities such as boxing and 
calisthenics, mentoring talks 
and cultural art workshops. The 
project would provide a 
community-level social focus to 
compliment the investment that 
has been made in Elephant 
Park.  

1,800 

2340 Holistic Well 
Women 

Community 
Well Being 

The aim of the Community Well 
being project is to support and 
improve the well being of 
volunteers and community 
leaders in the London Borough 
of Southwark. Our project 
wants to address their well 
being and introduce them to a 
well being practice to support 
and enhance their health and 

5,000 

41



23 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

well being. Our activities are 
aim to get people together to 
support one another through 
learning, creativity and building 
resilience for volunteer led 
organisations and volunteers in 
Southwark. We are offering a 
range of creative workshops, 
mindfulness, well being 
coaching and social and chill 
out lounge and well being cafe. 
All activities are for volunteer 
groups in Southwark. We 
would like to focus on 
small/medium groups has 
research has revealed that 
they are under resourced and 
over worked and are in need of 
support.  

2070 Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc 
London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey Community 
Kitchen is a grassroots local 
non for profit community 
organisation. Our project has 
operated out of Bermondsey 
for the last several years 
providing a variety of services 
for our local community. 
However our support reaches 
across Southwark and 
because of this we are 
changing our name to the 
London Community Kitchen, so 
more people are aware of our 
services and are not excluded. 
This year we are expanding 
this project across the whole of 
Southwark. The local food 
banks are overwhelmed with 
their growing clients. Our 
project offers something 
different to the traditional food 
bank, providing healthy 
nutritious homemade ready to 
eat meals.  
  

4,500 
[applied to 

5 wards] 

2274 Bethel Seventh 
Day Adventist 
Church 

Community 
soap kitchen 

The church will seek to provide 
a hot evening meal one 
Sunday a month to the local 
community. This is needed due 
to the on-going food crisis. It 
will provide residents who need 
food support the opportunity to 
have a meal provided for 
themselves.  

1,920 

1908 Draper Together 
CIO 

Strengthening 
Families 
Strengthening 
Communities 

The Strengthening Families, 
Strengthening Communities 
programme (SFSC) is an 
evidence based violence 
prevention approach to 

8,176 

42



24 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

enhancing family protective 
factors, safeguarding children, 
providing information to 
parents and building 
confidence. It has been used in 
a number of places to support 
a prevention and community 
safety.  

2009 Living Bankside Black Futures Providing Opportunities for 
young people from ethnic 
minorities - in particular those 
of African descent and a 
holistic mentoring programme 
with successful black and other 
ethnic minority individuals. 

13,000 
[applied to 

all 5 
wards] 

2313 South London 
Mission 

Mitigating the 
social, cultural 
and 
physiological 
impact of 
poverty in 
households 

We recognise that poverty 
affects the members of whole 
households differently. We 
believe recognition of the 
differing needs of each 
member is an inclusive and 
effective approach to 
alleviating the impacts of long 
term and intergenerational 
poverty and a means of 
fostering resilience.  
 
The Gaming hub is to 
encourage safe spaces for 
households that cannot afford 
the costs of gaming. The aim is 
to socialise enable childhood, 
keep children off the streets 
and mitigate grooming by 
gangs and in the long term 
enable innovation.  
Brite Box provides fresh quality 
produce to enable primary 
school pupils to learn healthy 
cooking at home and mitigates 
weekend food poverty for the 
family.  
 
Mummies Republic mitigates 
poverty through early 
intervention and engages the 
needs of mothers and babies, 
when they are most vulnerable 
to destitution, abuse and 
mental health. Mummies 
provides advocacy, Talking 
Therapy and community.  
 
Saturday school recognises 
that household overcrowding 
for children affects learning. 
The South London Mission 
provides supplementary 
education and access to 

10,000 
[also 

applied in 
North 
West, 

North East 
& East 

Central 
areas] 

43



25 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

cultural and social capital 
which is open to the whole 
family to enjoy, e.g. theatre 
trips. This enables shared and 
long lasting experiences and 
awareness.  
 
We also encourage citizenship 
for the above groups to aid 
understanding of how 
democratic governance works, 
through engagement with 
Councillors, visits to the 
Mayors office and Parliament. 
We also participate in the 
Thames clean up to share 
responsibility of our 
environment. We recognise 
that these forms of 
engagement enables access to 
active citizenship at times 
when households are feeling 
disaffected and 
disenfranchised. 
Our over 65 group is targeted 
at elderly Men and women 
gather from across Southwark 
for socialising, food and 
exercise. 

 

  

44



26 
 

West Central Neighbourhoods Fund 2023-24 Applications 

 
St Giles 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

1755 Flashy Wings 
Ministry 

Project 
Lavender 
Recreational  

Flashy Wings received 
neighbourhood funding for 
project lavender recreational 
therapy last year, and it was a 
huge success, a total of 160 
BAME women benefited from 
the project, thus we wish to 
continue with this project again. 
 
Flashy wings is proposing an 
engaging one-year project for 
women in Southwark St Giles 
ward, we are proposing project 
LAVENDER RECREATIONAL 
THERAPY, we intend to 
organise a couple of reactional 
activities for some of our service 
users who are suffering from 
anxiety, stress, bereavement, 
mental health hardship and 
isolation.  

 

5,000 

1870 Mind and Soul 
Community 
Choir 

Camberwell 
Voices 

Camberwell Voices: using 
singing as the key for a joint 
musical project between the 
Mind and Soul Community 
Choir, Camberwell Community 
Choir and members of the local 
community. The Mind and Soul 
Choir was set up to improve 
people's mental health as well as 
addressing the stigma 
associated with mental health 
issues. Part of the choirs work 
has always been to take singing 
into the wards of the South 
London and Maudsley Trust. 
(/slam.nhs.uk) a mental health 
hospital, as well as reaching out 
to connect with the local 
community. This project is 
needed in the community 
especially after the isolation 
caused by the pandemic and a 
rise in mental health issues.  
 
 

3,390 

1902 Southwark 
Refugee 
Communities 
Forum (SRCF) 

Refugee Week 
Conference and 
Community 
Celebration 

Refugee Week is a platform for 
groups to showcase their 
activities, raise their profile, 
make themselves visible to their 
own communities. In Southwark, 

5,000 

45



27 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

SRCF can reach 30 community 
groups, at least 2000 individuals. 
We will host a conference for 
representatives of these 
communities to discuss the 
challenges they face and how 
they have responded.  

2096 South London 
Gallery 

SLG Families: 
Sunday Spot 
and Garden 
Trail 

SLG offers free art and play 
activities for families every 
weekend through Sunday Spot 
workshops and artist-designed 
Family Garden Trail. 
 
Sunday Spot sessions are led by 
professional artists, with a focus 
on engaging artists who identify 
as black, brown or people of 
colour. Sessions run the last 
Sunday of each month 2-4pm, 
for children aged 5-12 and their 
parents/carers.  

 

4,855 

2107 Link Age 
Southwark 

Seated Yoga We are seeking funding to 
continue delivery of our weekly 
seated yoga group that is run in 
the Community Room at the 
Tenant Management 
Organisation. The group has 
thrived in its new setting and is 
attended by residents of 
D'Eynsford sheltered housing 
unit as all as service users who 
live locally.  
 
 

3,170 

2131 Raven & Rain 
Ministry Ltd 

Project 
Esperanza 

Project Esperanza aims at 
opening a kitchen for refugee 
families who would cook their 
cultural food themselves and 
share it together. Esperanza 
would: 
- Members of the refugee 
families would cook and share a 
cultural meal under the 
supervision of volunteers with 
food hygiene to ensure a good 
standard is always maintain. 
 
 

4,908 

2133 D'Eynsford 
Garden and 
Grounds 
Committee 

Community 
Gardener  

The Community Gardener Role 
provides vital community 
engagement on the D'Eynsford 
Estate. The funding will allow us 
to: 
Pay for a community gardener to 
run regular weekly sessions, 
advising and supporting 

4,660 

46



28 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

residents in the Secret Garden 
and grounds; 
We also opened for the 
Camberwell Society summer 
Open Gardens event, the 
Walworth Community Gardens 
Network Walking Tour, and 
featured on the webpages of a 
local estate agent as a key 
highlight of the area.  
The funding will build on our 
success into 2023: developing 
further collaboration with local 
charities; improving engagement 
and skills-building with residents 
across the estate; supporting our 
showcase event with dedicated 
expertise; helping us to meet our 
ambition of becoming a 'Thriving' 
garden.  

2134 The Playground Art in the 
Playground 

Through "Art in the Playground", 
The project aims to promote 
partnership working that is 
mutually beneficial and enables 
intergenerational skills 
exchange. It aims to equip 
students and graduates to be 
locally engaged and consider the 
ethics of how they work with 
people.  
 
The need: 
Build on pre-pandemic 
community partnership projects 
at the playground, reinvigorating 
and strengthening relationships 
with local organisations.  
 
Upskilling opportunities for 
residents, local organisations 
(their staff) and 
students/graduates, along with 
the sharing of university 
resources. 
-Benefit to residents: 
- More students are moving into 
the area, with local people 
feeling pushed out. This project 
will forge better relationships and 
understanding between 
residents, students and local 
organisations. It will encourage 
students to be ambassadors in 
encouraging community 
awareness with their UAL peers. 

2,170 

47



29 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

2135 D'Eynsford TMO 
CIC 

Home Court 
Basketball 
Sessions 

These sessions are the main 
legacy from the award-winning 
re-paint of the games area 
located in the D'Eynsford Estate. 
They provide free, all ages 
basketball and fitness coaching 
for 1.5 hours every Saturday in 
an area where no such 
alternatives exist. Our aim with 
the funding is to keep this vital 
resource running and to sustain 
or slightly increase the current 
level of engagement.  

3,750 

2148 Sceaux 
Gardens 
Community 
Makerspace 

Sceaux 
Gardens 
Community 
Makerspace 

Sceaux Gardens Community 
Makerspace was formed in early 
2021 with help from a 
contribution from the LBS 
Neighbourhood Fund. In April 
2021, a group of residents 
transformed a previously 
redundant and disused 'Pram 
Shed' in the Endercroft of Marie 
Curie into a fully functioning 
workshop. The workshop has 
had a successful first year, 
allowing residents to drop in on 
for one-to-one sessions assisted 
by a DBS checked and fully 
trained volunteer. We were 
generously supported by the 
2021/22 LBS Neighbourhoods 
Fund.  
The Makerspace would like to 
continue its support to residents 
throughout 2022/23, expanding 
our facilities on offer and ways of 
making. This will allow us to 
impart further skills to users of 
the space, empowering them to 
fix, restore and maintain 
belongings or fabricate 
functional solutions for their 
homes at no cost to residents. 
The repair rather than replace 
approach is no doubt going to be 
of use through the cost-of-living 
crisis. Upskilling residents has a 
great impact on positive mental 
health of our users, greater 
satisfaction and improvements 
to general wellbeing.  

2,161.46 

2192 Spring 
Community Hub 

Holiday club Spring Community Hub's 
objective is to support those who 
are experiencing financial 
challenges, causing Food 
Insecurity, and Activities such as 
providing Food Parcels. The 
Holiday Activity Club and other 

3,975 

48



30 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

relevant services help them to 
maximise the income they have.  
The Club provides nutritious 
food, play and learning 
opportunities. These actions 
provide great relief for parents 
because it reduces money 
worries triggered by food 
insecurity, spending money on 
pricey child entertainment, and 
compromising time at work for 
providing additional childcare. 
The Club provides further social 
benefits: most of the activities for 
children are fun games that 
nudge behaviour towards 
healthy eating, exercise and 
social inclusion. This stimulates 
a legacy of social integration and 
maintains general mental and 
physical well-being in 
Southwark. At each session, our 
aim is to alleviate holiday 
hunger, give Families the 
opportunity to the participant and 
engage with their children 
through arts and crafts, and 
dance to promote well-being, 
reduce the loss of learning by 
introducing educational play 
such as word searches, giving 
out books, storytelling and social 
interaction such as trips to 
minimise isolation.  

2237 Spring 
Community Hub  

Back 2 Work The focus of the project is to 
work with individuals to provide 
support and advice in Welfare 
Benefits, Housing, Employment, 
Business Start-up, development 
and access to other learning, 
and training provision  
Identify the benefits or financial 
support the customer may be 
entitled to, and help them to 
apply for benefits e.g. Universal 
Credit, Disability Living 
Allowance, PIP or other welfare 
benefits they may be entitled to, 
but were not previously aware of. 

7,794 

2327 Sceaux 
Gardens 
Community Bike 
Hub 

Sceaux 
Gardens 
Community 
Bike Hub 

Sceaux Gardens Community 
Bike Hub provides all residents 
of the estate access to bicycle 
repairs, free bicycles that have 
been constructed from restored 
and donated bicycles. It seeks to 
impart skills to its users, 
empowering them to fix, restore 
and maintain their mode of 

1,500 

49



31 
 

Application 
ID 

Organisation Project Title Project Description Amount 
Requested 

[£] 

transport. 
The grant will help replenish 
general sundries in the space, 
such as brake pads, inner tubes, 
gloves and first aid kits. It will 
also help deliver two open 
access workshops to residents 
on the estate. 

2070 Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc 
London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey 
Community 
Kitchen Inc 
London 
Community 
Kitchen  

Bermondsey Community 
Kitchen is a grassroots local non 
for profit community 
organisation. Our project has 
operated out of Bermondsey for 
the last several years providing a 
variety of services for our local 
community. However our 
support reaches across 
Southwark and because of this 
we are changing our name to the 
London Community Kitchen, so 
more people are aware of our 
services and are not excluded.  
This year we are expanding this 
project across the whole of 
Southwark. The local food banks 
are overwhelmed with their 
growing clients. Our project 
offers something different to the 
traditional food bank, providing 
healthy nutritious homemade 
ready to eat meals.  

4,500 
[applied to 

5 wards] 

2009 Living Bankside Black Futures Providing Opportunities for 
young people from ethnic 
minorities - in particular those of 
African descent and a holistic 
mentoring programme with 
successful black and other 
ethnic minority individuals. 

13,000 
[applied to 

all 5 
wards] 

 

 

50



 

 
 

 

 

Item No.  
10. 

 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
7 March 2023 
 

Decision Taker: 
West Central Multi-Ward 
Forum  
 

Report title: 
 

Devolved Highways 2023-24: Capital Funding 
Allocation (West Central) 
 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

Camberwell Green, Faraday, Newington, North 
Walworth, St Giles. 

From: 
 

Head of Highways  
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the West Central Multi-Ward Forum approves the reallocation of 

underspent funds carried forward from previous years’ underspend, 
current programme underspend and current programme project 
cancellations that can be allocated towards projects listed in Appendices 
1 and 3. 

 
2. That the West Central Multi-Ward Forum approves the allocation of 

funds for the 2023-24 Devolved Highways capital programme in the 
West Central Multi-Ward Area from the list of applications set out in 
Appendix 1 and in consideration of the officer’s proposal 
recommendations in Appendix 3. 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
3. The council’s non-principal road investment programme prioritises works 

on non-principal roads on a borough-wide basis and this investment 
forms the largest part of the annual investment programme. 

 
4. Multi-ward areas are allocated a devolved fund of £800,000 each year 

from the total annual programme to spend on their priorities for highway 
renewal and maintenance that may not be prioritised as part of the 
borough-wide programme. 

 
5. The financial provision for each community council is pro-rata by ward, 

as published in the Highways Capital Investment Programme 2014-15 
report.  

   
6. From 2017-18, the scope of the fund has been widened to permit the full 

range of minor traffic and highway capital schemes rather than solely 
like-for-like repair and replacement. Examples of the types of works 
which can now be funded include: 

 
a. Footway and carriageway resurfacing. 

51
Agenda Item 10



 

 
 

 

b. Traffic calming. 
c. Localised repairs. 
d. Accessibility improvements. 
e. Footway buildouts. 

Cycle hangars. 
 

7. Advertisement of the application process for project funding in the West 
Central Multi-ward area under the programme was carried out in local 
press, social media, council website and mailing lists from multi ward 
area forums. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
8. There is £190,475 available for the 2023-24 Devolved Highways capital 

programme for new projects in the West Central Multi-Ward area. 
 

9. There is £171,400 in additional funding from previous years 
underspend, current programme underspend and current programme 
project cancellations. The maximum spend available for allocation by 
the West Central Multi-Ward Forum in the 2023-24 financial year is 
therefore: £361,875.   

  
10. The application form for funding invited expressions of interest for the 

applicants to deliver projects themselves. A due diligence exercise has 
been undertaken as part of the feasibility process to ensure that this is 
both practical and realistic.  

 
Policy framework implications 
 
11. The Devolved Highways programme is fully aligned with the council’s 

policies around sustainability, regeneration and community engagement. 
 

12. The Devolved Highways programme fully supports and aligns with the 
council’s Streets for People strategy which outlines the council’s ongoing 
commitment to, and ambition for, healthier neighbourhoods, cleaner air, 
thriving town centres and safer roads. 

 
Community, equalities (including socio-economic) and health impacts 
 
Community impact statement 
 
13. The projects listed in Appendix 1 and/or Appendix 3 met the criteria of 

highway improvements that work towards policies set out in the 
Council’s movement plan.  

 
14. The funding application process itself invited ideas for projects to come 

from the local community. This has a positive impact in terms of the 
promotion of involvement of local people in the democratic process and 
so the allocation of funds promotes highway improvement schemes that 
work towards policies set out in the council’s movement plan.  

52



 

 
 

 

 
15. All projects also follow consultation procedures as set out in paragraph 

31 of this report. 
 
Equalities (including socio-economic) impact statement 
 
16. The ideas for Devolved Highways projects came from the local 

community, the majority via a simple project nomination form which was 
available in electronic and paper format. The advertising of the project 
funding application process was through a variety of modes to reach a 
wide audience and different groups within the area, such as in local 
press, social media, council website and mailing lists from multi ward 
area forums.  

 
17. Further consideration of equalities impacts will be carried out as the 

funded projects progress through the design stage.  
 

18. The allocation of funds is not considered to have any adverse effect on 
socio-economic or health equalities. The allocation of funds will have no 
disproportionate impact on any particular age, gender, disability, faith, 
religion, ethnicity or sexual orientation. 

 
Health impact statement 
 
19. One or more of the following health benefits are expected from 

allocation of funds based on the types of projects normally funded via 
the Devolved Highways Programme. 

 
20. An increase in community assets in the public realm – providing more 

places for people to spend time in their local community. This has the 
potential to have a positive impact on social and mental wellbeing, by 
creating connected and cohesive communities.   
 

21. Increased ownership over community public realm – this helps people 
within the community join together around a project, supporting 
connected and cohesive communities. 

 
22. Project examples such as tree planting, street lighting, landscaping 

traffic calming, junction improvements, pedestrian crossings, cycle 
parking and cycling infrastructure may have the following impacts: 

 
a. improve mental wellbeing by increasing access to the outdoors and 

nature, improve mental and physical wellbeing by improving street 
space and encouraging active travel; 

b. improved access to affordable and secure cycle parking which should 
contribute to less congestion and air pollution locally;  

c. tree planting and green spaces may help to reduce or disperse air 
pollution, supporting people’s physical health; and  

d. improved street lighting can improve safety and reduce the chances 
of crime or anti-social behavior. 

53



 

 
 

 

 
Climate change implications 
 
23. The proposals in Appendix 1 and 3 are in line with the council’s movement 

plan which encourages active travel in order to reduce congestion and 
improve air quality within the borough. 

 
24. The proposed measures listed in Appendix 1 and 3 support the aims of 

the council’s Climate Change Strategy under Priority 2 – Active and 
Sustainable Travel. Key aims of the council’s Climate Change Strategy 
include to ‘reduce car journeys to a minimum by 2030’ and to ‘be a 
borough where the walking and cycling becomes the default way to get 
around’. Part of meeting the borough’s ambition of net zero emissions 
by 2030 includes a reduction in vehicle kilometres travelled and a shift to 
active and public transport; road transport currently accounts for 15% of 
the borough’s emissions. These measure strongly support that ambition.  

 
25. A just and inclusive transition is at the heart of the council’s emerging 

climate policy. These proposals prioritise the movement of people first 
and foremost, while retaining vehicle access for those who require it. In 
delivering a safer and more equitable highway network, the measures 
are in accordance with the council’s approach to addressing the climate 
emergency. 
 

Resource implications 
 
26. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be 

monitored and reported on as part of the overall Capital Programme. 
 
Legal implications 
 
27. Not applicable.  
 
Financial implications 

 
28. The funding for the 2023-24 Devolved Highways capital programme was 

approved by the cabinet member for environment, transport 
management and air quality as detailed in Allocation of funds to wards 
via Cleaner Greener Safer and Devolved Highways programmes report 
dated 20 December 2018. 

 
29. All professional fees related to the project are also treated as the capital 

costs of the project.  
 
30. The total expenditure and sources of funding for the scheme will be 

monitored and reported as part of the overall Capital Programme. 
 
Consultation 
 
31. All Devolved Highway projects require consultation with stakeholders, 

54



 

 
 

 

including the project applicant, local residents, tenants and residents 
associations and local community groups where appropriate. 

 
SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 
Assistant Chief Executive – Governance and Assurance   

 
32. The West Central Multi-Ward Forum is asked to approve the re-allocation 

and allocation of Devolved Highways funds for the West Central Multi-
ward area as detailed in paragraph 1-2 of this report. 

 
33. Should the West Central Multi-Ward Forum be satisfied with the contents 

of this report they have the authority to make the decision recommended 
at paragraph 1 pursuant to paragraph 2, Part 3H of the council’s 
constitution. This part of the constitution states that multi-ward forums can 
“approve the allocation of neighbourhood funds, cleaner, greener, safer 
and devolved highway capital schemes of a local nature using the 
resources and criteria identified by the cabinet.”  

 
34. The Human Rights Act 1998 imposes a duty on the council as a public 

authority to apply the European Convention on Human Rights; as a result 
the council must not act in a way which is incompatible with these rights.  
The most important rights for highway and planning purposes are Article 8 
(respect for homes); Article 6 (natural justice) and Article 1 of the First 
Protocol (peaceful enjoyment of property). The allocation of funds is not 
anticipated to engage or breach the provisions of the Human Rights Act 
1998. 

 
35. The council has a duty, pursuant to section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, 

to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to eliminate 
discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations 
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and 
persons who do not share it. Protected characteristics include age, sex, 
disability, pregnancy and maternity. Officers have considered the public 
sector equality duty as set out in paragraphs 13 to 22 of this report and 
have concluded that at this time the proposals will have no detrimental 
impacts on a particular protected group or on the equality of opportunity 
under the Equality Act 2010.  
 

36. Council Assembly on 14 July 2021 approved a change to the council’s 
constitution to confirm that all decisions made by the council will consider 
the climate and equality (including socio-economic disadvantage and 
health inequality) consequences of taking that decision. This has been 
considered in the report at paragraphs 23-25 above.  

 
Strategic Director of Finance and Governance    
 
37. This report seeks the approval of the West Central Multi-ward area for the 

allocation of funds (£190,475 + £171,400) for the 2023-24 Devolved 
Highway programme in the West Central Multi-ward Area from the list of 

55



 

 
 

 

applications set out in Appendix 1 and Appendix 3.   
 

38. The strategic director of finance and governance notes the resource 
implications in the report that the proposed allocations will be contained 
within the council’s capital programme. 

 
39. It is also noted that officers’ time and any other costs connected with this 

recommendation will be contained within existing departmental revenue 
budgets. 

 

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 

Background Papers Held At Contact 
 

Highways Capital 
Investment Programme 
2014-15 

Environment and 
Leisure / Highways 
160 Tooley 
Street 

George Mellish 
020 7525 7903 

Link: 
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=500
02072&Opt=0 
 

Movement Plan 2019 Environment and 
Leisure / Highways 
160 Tooley Street 

George Mellish 
020 7525 7903 

Link (copy and paste into your browser): 
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/9415/Movement-Plan-
2019.pdf 
 

 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 

Appendix 1 West Central Multi-ward Area Devolved Highway Capital 
programme 2023-24: Applications 

Appendix 2 West Central Multi-ward Area 2023-24: Unallocated Funding 

Appendix 3 West Central Multi-ward Area 2023-24: Officer Proposals 

 

56

https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50002072&Opt=0
https://moderngov.southwark.gov.uk/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=50002072&Opt=0
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/9415/Movement-Plan-2019.pdf
https://www.southwark.gov.uk/assets/attach/9415/Movement-Plan-2019.pdf


 

 
 

 

 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 

Lead Officer Dale Foden, Head of Highways  

Report Author George Mellish, Principal Engineer  

Version Final 

Dated 21 February 2023 

Key Decision? Yes 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES /  
CABINET MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments Included 

Assistant Chief Executive 
– Governance and 
Assurance   

Yes Yes 

Strategic Director of 
Finance and Governance  

Yes Yes 

Climate Change Director  Yes Yes 

Cabinet Member  No No 

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 22 February 2023 

 

57



West Central Multi Ward Area
Devolved Highways Capital Investment programme 2023-24: Applications
Reference Proposal Name Ward Programme

1902480 Secure bicycle storage on McDowall Road Camberwell Green Highways
1903722 McDowall Road traffic calming Camberwell Green Highways
1903953 Safe cycle parking Camberwell Green Highways
1897738 East Street Pocket Park Faraday Highways
1900331 bike hangar on boundary lane Faraday Highways
1901117 Walworth junction Faraday Highways
1901335 Walworth and Wooler Street welcomes nature Faraday Highways
1901756 Red Lion Row Safety Project Faraday Highways
1896620 Erection of permanent bollards outside Roffo Court SEFaraday Highways
1902250 Carter Street Planter Newington Highways
1902528 Replace planters with railings Newington Highways
1903862 Newington Hub between Walworth Garden, Pasley PaNewington Highways
1904110 Berryfield's Green Street Newington Highways
1902957 Traffic calming and landscaping efforts on Stead, WadNorth Walworth Highways
1901084 Peckham Grove cycle parking St Giles Highways

APPENDIX 1
58



West Central Multi Ward Area

Ward
Unallocated 
Funding

Camberwell 
Green £102,115.00
Faraday £33,095.00
North 
Walworth £36,190.00
Total £171,400.00

Unalloacted 2022-23 Devolved Highways Funding

APPENDIX 2 
59



W
es

t C
en

tr
al

 M
ul

ti 
W

ar
d 

A
re

a
D

ev
ol

ve
d 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
C

ap
ita

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
20

23
-2

4:
 O

ffi
ce

r P
ro

po
sa

ls
Pr

op
os

al
 N

am
e

W
ar

d
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e
C

os
t

C
om

be
r G

ro
ve

 - 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
ea

lm
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
ut

si
de

 S
ch

oo
l

C
am

be
rw

el
l G

re
en

H
ig

hw
ay

s
£2

0,
00

0
D

en
m

ar
k 

R
oa

d 
Fo

ot
w

ay
 A

cc
es

si
ilit

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
C

am
be

rw
el

l G
re

en
H

ig
hw

ay
s

£2
5,

00
0

APPENDIX 3 
60



  
WEST CENTRAL MULTI-WARD AREA AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022 – 23 
NOTE:  Original held by Constitutional Team all amendments/queries to  

Gerald Gohler Tel: 020 7525 7420  
 

 
Name No of 

copies 
Name No of  

E-copies 

 
To all Members of the Multi-ward area 

 
Councillor Darren Merrill  
Councillor Kieron Williams 
 
(Members receiving electronic copies only) 
Councillor Naima Ali (Chair) 
Councillor Ketzia Harper (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Suzanne Abachor    
Councillor John Batteson    
Councillor Ellie Cumbo 
Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle MBE  
Councillor Natasha Ennin  
Councillor Sam Foster  
Councillor Alice Macdonald  
Councillor Kimberly McIntosh  
Councillor Jason Ochere 
Councillor Martin Seaton 
Councillor Ian Wingfield 
 
 
 
Officers – Electronic copies only 
 
Gerald Gohler, Constitutional Officer - 
Hub 2, Floor 2, 160 Tooley Street 
 
 
Grace Semakula, Empowering 
Communities Programme Officer - Hub 
3, Floor 5, 160 Tooley Street   
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

1 
1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1 
 
 
1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Others 

Audit Commission 
160 Tooley St. 
 
 
 
Total:                                                  
 
 

Dated: 17 February 2023 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
1 
 

 
 
 
2 

 

 


	Agenda
	6 Minutes
	8 Cleaner Greener Safer 2023-24: Capital Funding
	Appendix 1: All West Central Multi-Ward CGS Applications 2023-24

	9 Neighbourhoods Fund (NsF) 2023-24
	10 Devolved highways budget 2023-24: Capital Funding
	Appendix 1: West Central Multi-ward Area Devolved Highway Capital programme 2023-24: Applications
	Appendix 2: West Central Multi-ward Area 2023-24: Unallocated Funding
	Appendix 3: West Central Multi-ward Area 2023-24: Officer Proposals

	 



